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INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS

BDO Limited
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Hong Kong
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China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o B Wt w S o A

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is a casual wear apparel company in the PRC offering a
wide range of fashion casual wear products such as jackets, sweaters,
shirts, T-shirts, trousers, shoes and accessories under its own brand,
N&Q.

Due to the intense market competition in the apparel industry,
revenue of the Group decreased significantly to approximately
RMB8,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019") from
approximately RMB2 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
("FY2018"), as the Company has scaled down its operation since the
first quarter of 2019, aiming at minimising the operation cost. During
FY2019, the Company completed a disposal of its leasehold land and
building and record a loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of approximately RMB14 million in
FY2019. Administrative and other expenses decreased to
approximately RMB13 million in FY2019 from approximately RMB17
million in FY2018. As a result, the Company recorded a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately RMB30
million in FY2019 from approximately RMB19 million in FY2018.

The Group recorded total assets of approximately RMB25 million as at
31 December 2019 as compared to approximately RMB66 million as
at 31 December 2018. The decrease in total assets of the Group was
mainly attributable to, among other things, the disposal of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid land lease payments for
approximately RMB52 million and RMB10 million respectively during
K20 9\
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Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. @iz a R B R A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION/REVERSE
TAKEOVER

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 December
2017 (the "RTO Announcement”), the Company, Zhong Hong
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor”) and the Vendor's warrantor
(Mr. Hu Yulin who was interested in approximately 76% of the issued
shares of the Vendor as at the date of the RTO Announcement)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement on 6 November 2017 in
relation to the Company’s acquisition of the entire issued share capital
(the "Acquisition”) in Zhong Hong International Limited (the “Target
Company”) which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Vendor.
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the consideration shall
be paid by the Company by allotting and issuing to the Vendor
1,541,878,659 new H Shares, credited as fully paid, at the issue price
of HK$0.6829 per share. Completion of the Acquisition is conditional
upon fulfillment or waiver of a number of conditions precedents, as
disclosed in the RTO Announcement.

The Target Company and its subsidiaries (the “Target Group”) are
principally engaged in the provision of construction services, mainly as
a general contractor for residential construction projects, commercial
and public works construction projects, and industrial and other
construction projects, in the PRC.

As disclosed in the RTO Announcement, the Acquisition constitutes a
reverse takeover for the Company under Rule 14.06(6)(a) of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company will be treated as if it were a
new listing applicant. The Acquisition is therefore also subject to the
approval by the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for a new listing application to
be made by the Company. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 4 March 2020 for details of the latest development in
respect of the Acquisition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o B Wt w S o A

THE DISPOSAL

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 21 June 2019 (the “VSD
Circular™), on 16 April 2019, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with J& JH 7 22 ik i) i i 4% 2 5 FR 23 & (Quanzhou
Xin Hao Han Brand Management Co., Ltd.*) (the “Purchaser”), pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase, property comprising a parcel of land
and premises situated at Quanzhou Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Quanzhou City, Fujian Province, the PRC (the
“Property”) at a consideration of RMB50 million (the “Disposal”). The
Disposal has been approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 6 August 2019, and completed on 26 August 2019.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Since the suspension of the trading in H Shares in July 2014, the
Company has been striving to reactivate its business and to fulfill the
resumption conditions imposed by the Stock Exchange. As disclosed
in the 2016 annual report of the Group, the Company would seek to
resume the trading of the H Shares at the earliest possible time in
order to re-establish a fund raising platform to be available for the
future expansion of the Group. In light of the various challenges and
uncertainties lying ahead in the apparel industry under the current
PRC macro-economic environment, the Board has continuously been
exploring different investment opportunities to broaden the income
stream of the Group with a view to promote growth in the revenue
and profits of the Group which will be beneficial to its shareholders.
Through the Acquisition, the Company can acquire the well-
established businesses of the Target Group which is engaged in the
construction industry in the PRC and allows the scope of business of
the Group to be expanded and its existing business portfolio to be
diversified.
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Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. @iz a R B R A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS PROSPECTS (Continued)

The construction industry in the PRC has experienced rapid growth in
the recent years in accordance with the improvement of urbanisation
as well as investment in infrastructure in the PRC. In order to
accommodate the increasing urban population in cities, there are
growing opportunities for building construction projects of both
residential and commercial properties. Further, as public facilities and
infrastructure are necessary to drive the urbanisation, the Company is
optimistic towards the growth potential in the construction industry.
The Board is of the view that the growth potential and prospect of
the construction industry is expected to be more promising than that
of the apparel industry.

The Target Group has an established business and is a valuable asset
to be added into the business as a diversification for the Company.
After completion of the Acquisition subject to fulfillment of the
conditions precedent as disclosed in the announcement made by the
Company on 4 December 2017, the Target Group will become
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The Company has no plan to dispose of its existing business. After
completion of the Acquisition subject to the fulfillment of conditions
precedent as disclosed in the RTO Announcement, the Company may
restructure its apparel business according to the development of the
apparel industry and the then market conditions.

B B vt i S o A

E3 YR C D)

MER > ARPEBTEERRRENEEZRIESR
PN - PEBERKESGRIER - BT EENTA
BERZBWALD  EEREEYEZZLER#
SHBRES o I - AR ARG R EER G HE
BUMEMERBLE  NRARHEEXZERED
REBIEE - EF R R AMEEE IERE N LA
SENRETE -

Iy

BREEZEBCARE  BARAEA—HE
BE  EtME T EBRER - WEEHATARQR
“EtHF+ - ANBERZ AEMKEZ R
HREREDEZK  BRKBEERSKAERAT
ZE2EMBRR -

A

»*x x

Zl

ARBA B EREER - RIRBERTK (A
FFRAKBASARESBDRGHEER)E K
REARFRETEZERVERERMNEEE
T2 BREE R

Annual Report 2019 == — hFF 7R

07



08

Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. ® f@E#a RHBRA A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o B Wt w S o A

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group generated revenue in FY2019 of approximately RMB8,000,
which represented an approximately 100% decrease as compared to
approximately RMB2 million in FY2018 mainly due to that the
Company has scaled down its operation since the first quarter of
2019.

Cost of sales and gross loss

Cost of sales in FY2019 was approximately RMB51,000, which
represented an approximately 98% decrease as compared to
approximately RMB2 million in FY2018. The decrease was mainly due
to the decrease in sales.

Gross loss in FY2019 was approximately RMB43,000 as compared to
approximately RMB60,000 in FY2018. The decrease in gross loss was
mainly due to the decrease in sales volume.

Other gains and losses, net

The Company recorded net other losses of approximately RMB15
million in FY2019, as compared to the net other gains of
approximately RMB2 million in FY2018. Such significant increase in
other losses was mainly attributable to the loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
approximately RMB14 million in FY2019.

Administrative and other expenses

Administrative and other expenses in FY2019 were approximately
RMB13 million, which represented an approximately 24% decrease as
compared to approximately RMB17 million in FY2018. Such decrease
was mainly due to decrease in depreciation expenses upon disposal of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets during FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Finance costs

No finance costs were incurred in FY2019 as compared to
approximately RMB1 million in FY2018. The reason for the decrease
in finance cost was due to the repayment of the other borrowings of
RMB80 million during FY2018.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

Based on the above, loss attributable to owners of the Company in
FY2019 amounted to approximately RMB30 million, which
represented an increase of approximately 54% as compared to
approximately RMB19 million in FY2018.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2019, bank and cash balances of the Group were
approximately RMB23,034,000 (2018: approximately RMB488,000).
The Group's gearing ratio (measured as total borrowings over total
assets) as at 31 December 2019 was 0% (31 December 2018: 21%).
The decrease was mainly attributable to the repayment of the loan
from a shareholder during FY2019.

Foreign currency risks

Most of the Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Renminbi, the functional currency of the Group.
Therefore, the Group had minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
and hence the Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure of the Group from time to time and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Significant investments/Material acquisitions and
disposals

Save as the Acquisition and the Disposal, the Group had not made
any significant investments or material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries during FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o B Wt w S o A

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities and capital commitments (31 December 2018:
nil).

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
FY2019 (FY2018: nil).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiary purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed security during FY2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Xu Haiying (FF/5&)

Mr. Xu Haiying, aged 65, was appointed to the Board on 15 May
2017. He was appointed as a non-executive director of Hao Tian on 1
January 2012 and was re-designated as an executive director of Hao
Tian in February 2012. Mr. Xu is the senior technical consultant and
senior manager of A Bl & 82 IR R & B A& R 22 A (China Jieneng
Huangbao Group Company Limited*), whose principal business is the
development of energy conservation technologies, clean and new
energy, and energy infrastructure construction. Mr. Xu has substantial
management experience and has been the manager of the
representative offices of Wallem & Company Limited (M 755 E
B B 2 d])in Shanghai and Tianjin, the PRC and the chief
representative of the Shanghai representative office of Hong Kong
Maritime Company Limited (&/8/8:Z B R/ 7)) and has served other
management positions.

Sit Hon Wing (EE %)

Mr. Sit Hon Wing, aged 43, was appointed to the Board on 21 April
2017. He has served as the chief financial officer, financial controller
and company secretary of certain listed companies in Hong Kong.
During the period from June 2006 to January 2008, Mr. Sit was the
financial controller and company secretary of Sau San Tong Holdings
Limited which was listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8200).
During the period from January 2008 to September 2015, Mr. Sit was
the chief financial officer and company secretary of CT Environmental
Group Limited ("CTEG") which was listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 1363). Since September 2015 and October 2016 and up
to August 2017, Mr. Sit has been the financial controller and
company secretary of Hao Tian Development Group Limited
respectively. Mr. Sit. is currently the Company Secretary of CTEG. Mr.
Sit is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA) and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA).
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

o 5 R AR T Y R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Non-executive Director

Han Huiyuan (22 R)

Mr. Han Huiyuan (82R), aged 56, is a non-executive Director. He
was appointed to the Board on 9 July 2013. Mr. Han is currently the
managing director of Heaven-Sent Capital Management Group Co.,
Lid. (EAKXKEEEETREERHBAERAT]), a corporate shareholder
of Silicon Valley Solar Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (FRIIFEAR K5 S Al
¥ EABRAT) and is responsible for the overall business operation.
Mr. Han obtained a master degree in urban economics from the
Renmin University of China (FREBI AR AXE) in 2011 and a bachelor
degree in industrial automation from Huazhong Technical College (Z&
A T &%) (currently known as the “Huazhong University of Science
and Technology (ZEFR EHE K E)") in 1984.

Independent non-executive Directors
Chan Ming Sun (FR#,%2)

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 47, was appointed to the
Board on 21 April 2017. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of
New South Wales, Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in
Accounting and Computer Information Systems. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of Certified Practising Accountants, Australia. Mr.
Chan has over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
investment and financial management. Mr. Chan is currently an
investment manager of Sprint Asset Management Limited. Mr. Chan
is also an independent non- executive director of each of China
Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited (stock code: 871),
Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 747),
Up Energy Development Group Limited (stock code: 307) and Hao
Tian, and of Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code: 8016),
whose securities are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan
resigned as independent non-executive director of Beautiful China
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 706), Cornerstone Financial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8112), L&A International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8195), Far East Holdings International Limited
(stock code: 36) and Life Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code:
8056) in February 2014, November 2015, March 2017, July 2017 and
December 2018 respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Lee Chi Hwa Joshua (Z &)

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, aged 47, was appointed to the Board on
21 April 2017. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in the
fields of auditing, accounting and finance. Mr. Lee currently serves as
an independent non-executive director of Hao Tian, Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (Stock code:
1341), Up Energy Development Group Limited (Stock code: 307),
China Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited (Stock code: 8116),
Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 8153) and
Cornerstone Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8112)
respectively, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was
an executive director of Link-Asia International Co. Ltd (Stock code:
1143) from November 2015 to December 2019, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an
independent non-executive director of King Stone Energy Group
Limited (Stock code: 663) from January 2012 to April 2013, China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Group Limited (Stock code: 726) from
December 2013 to February 2015 and Teamway International Group
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1239) from March 2015 to August
2017, all companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mak Yiu Tong (ZEBX)

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, aged 61, was appointed to the Board on 21 April
2017. Mr. Mak graduated from the China University of Political
Science and Law with a Bachelor of Law degree in 1998. Mr. Mak is a
legal executive of Chiu, Szeto & Cheng, a firm of solicitors in Hong
Kong. Mr. Mak has been working in the legal industry for over 30
years. Mr. Mak currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of Talent Property Group Limited (Stock code: 760), Up
Energy Development Group Limited (Stock code: 307) and Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (Stock code:
1341), whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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o 5 R AR T Y R

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Wang Zhiyu (EEF)

Ms. Wang Zhiyu, aged 36, joined the Company and was appointed
to the Board of supervisor on 21 April 2017. She obtained a
bachelor’s degree in business administration and has over 15 years of
experience in administrative and human resources management.
Between 2003 and 2010, she served as a manager in two companies
and was responsible for daily administration management and
establishing the administration and staff policy of the companies. In
2010, she joined Hao Tian Development Group Limited (“Hao Tian”)
and served a number of management positions, and was responsible
for administrative and human resources management for the Hao
Tian group and its subsidiaries. Ms. Wang was also appointed as a
director of various subsidiaries of the Hao Tian group since June 2012.

Cheung Wang Lok (iR 2= 4£)

Mr. Cheung Wang Lok, aged 42, joined the Company and was
appointed to the Board of supervisor on 21 April 2017. He has more
than 18 years of experience in internal auditing, external auditing,
accounting, finance, taxation, treasury management, internal control
and personnel management in international and listed companies.
Mr. Cheung was an associate general manager and finance manager
in a listed company in the United States of America from 2007 to
2010. Mr. Cheung joined Hao Tian in 2010. He was appointed as a
director of various subsidiaries of Hao Tian group since May 2016 and
was promoted to Senior Finance Manager in 2019.

Cai Han Zong (¥£8)

Mr. Cai Han Zong, aged 34, has over 10 years of experience in stores
engineering supervision and administrative management. Mr. Cai
joined the Company in August 2011 as an engineering supervisor. He
has then worked as the deputy manager of the administrative
department of the Company since September 2016. Prior to joining
the Company in 2011, Mr. Cai had worked in &I 1525 A &
F B & 7 (Shenzhen Cross Domain Sports Equipment Company
Limited*) as its engineering supervisor. Mr. Cai obtained a college
degree in business administration from The Open University of Fujian
in 2006.

* . For identification purposes only
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are retailing men’s and
women'’s casual apparels. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit for the year is set out in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this

report.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group in FY2019 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
53 of this annual report.

For details regarding a fair review of the Company’s business, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Business review” of the section
headed “Management discussion and analysis” of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend.
Summary financial information

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 136. The
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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B

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS OF
H SHARES

The notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") and
the period of closure of register of members of H Shares will be
published and despatched to the shareholders of the Company
("Shareholders”), at least 20 days before the meeting, in accordance
with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the articles of association
of the Company. To ascertain the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration. Details to which will be
announced in due course.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group

during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, our Company had no distributable reserves
available for distribution to its equity holders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the PRC which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2019.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly workplace
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. We strive to
minimize our environmental impact by saving water supplies,
electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
packaging materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company’s operations are mainly carried out in the PRC. Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC. During FY2019 and up to the date of
this report, there is no material non-compliance with all the prevailing
laws and regulations in the PRC.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales

The aggregate percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s major

customers during FY2019 are as follows:

Our largest customer
Five largest customers combined

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in

the Group's five largest customers.

Purchases

During FY2019, no purchase was incurred in the Group.

DIRECTORS
The composition of the Board is as follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Haiying (Chairman)
Mr. Sit Hon Wing

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Han Huiyuan

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and supervisors of the Company
and the senior management of the Group are set out on pages 9 to
12 of the annual report.

An annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules has been received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors. The Company considered that all the independent
non-executive Directors were independent, and that no family,
material or other relevant relationships existed between any of them.
In addition, none of the members of the Board were related to any of
the others.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years.

No Director and supervisor of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had approximately 5 employees as at 31 December 2019
(31 December 2018: 20 employees). The total remuneration of
employees in FY2019 amounted to approximately RMB2 million
(FY2018: RMB3 million).

The Group's emolument policy is formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and is reviewed regularly.
Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group. The primary goal of the emolument policy
with regard to the remuneration packages of the Group’s executive
Directors is to enable the Group to retain and motivate executive
Directors by linking their compensation with performance as
measured against corporate objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group’s remuneration packages include
basic salaries, discretionary bonuses and housing benefits.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, the supervisors of the Company nor their
respective associates had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the information disclosed under this annual report, there was
no other contract of significance between the Group and the
Company’s controlling shareholder (the “Controlling Shareholder”) or
any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors and the Company’s
chief executive, and their respective associates had any interests in the
Shares in and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
been taken under such provisions of the SFO) or pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
("Model Code"”), or were required to be entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors are aware of, the
interests or short positions of the persons and corporations in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
were as follow:

FERRRAQATRG RAEABERONVES
599}

R=B—NF+=A=T+—A0  BEFHE AHA
TROEERR RABR A BB SR
BOIEXVBE2REIH B GXANARARE
AR ¢

Approximate
percentage  Approximate
of the percentage

Nature of Number of  Type of respective of total
Name of Shareholder interest Shares held  shares type of shares  issued shares
FERT
EEERGDZ REE 2
RRHE/ BB BEHE FERGEE RoER BRESL BRHESL
(Note 1)
Bz 1)
Hao Tian Investment (China) Beneficial owner 312,068,670 (L)  Domestic Shares 69.35 51.09
Company Limited (Note 2)
ERBE(RE)ERDA EmEBA NER (FiEE2)
Li Shao Yu Interest in controlled 312,068,670 (L)  Domestic Shares 69.35 51.09
corporation (Note 2)
FhF G EEER MERR (F7E2)
Interest in controlled 53,991,000 (L)  H Shares (Note 3) 33.58 8.84
corporation
RS EEER HER (P31 3)
Asia Link Capital Investment Interest in controlled 312,068,670 (L)  Domestic Shares 69.35 51.09
Holdings Limited corporation (Note 2)
THAIEEREBAT G EEER WE R (M3E2)
Interest in controlled 53,991,000 (L) ~ H Shares (Note 3) 33.58 884
corporation
RS EEER HI (P31 3)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND FERRRARB RS R HEER D &S

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING KRB &)
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Approximate
percentage  Approximate
of the percentage
Nature of Number of  Type of respective of total
Name of Shareholder interest Shares held  shares type of shares  issued shares
FERT
EEERGDZ RGBS 2
BREHE/ BB BEME HERAEE RHER BRES BRES
(Note 1)
(FitzE1)
Hao Tian Corporation Limited Beneficial owner 53,991,000 (L) ~ H Shares (Note 3) 33.58 8.84
EREBERRA ERfEBA HIR (i3 3)
Hao Tian Development Group Interest in controlled 53,991,000 (L) ~ H Shares (Note 3) 33.58 8.84
Limited corporation
EREREEERAT RS EERER HER (3 3)
Interest in controlled 312,068,670 (L)  Domestic Shares 69.35 51.09
corporation (Note 2)
RS EERER WE R (FEE2)
Chan Yuk Ming Beneficial owner/ 42,800,000 (L)  H Shares (Note 4) 26.62 7.01
Interest in controlled
corporation/founder of
a discretionary trust
G5 BEnlEa A/ ZEtEE HER (PiEr4)
%/ 2 RETARA
Theme Link Investments Ltd. Beneficial owner 12,700,000 (L) ~ H Shares (Note 4) 7.90 2.08
ERfEBEA HI (zr4)
Evisu (PTC) Limited Trustee 29,400,000 (L) H Shares (Note 5) 18.28 431
ZiEA HA (B3E5)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND

FERRRAQATRG RAEABERONVES

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING RAXE &)
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Approximate
percentage  Approximate
of the percentage
Nature of Number of  Type of respective of total
Name of Shareholder interest Shares held  shares type of shares  issued shares
HERT
EEER®HZ RGBS 2
BREgE,/ 48 BEME HERAEAE RHER BRES BRESL
(Note 1)
(FitzE1)
Pacific Success Holdings Limited ~ Interest in controlled 29,400,000 (L) H Shares (Note 5) 18.28 481
corporation
RS EEER HRAR (P& 5)
Evergreen International Interest in controlled 29,400,000 (L) H Shares (Note 5) 18.28 431
Holdings Limited corporation
RS EERER HRAR (Ff5E5)
Sunsonic Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 29,400,000 (L) H Shares (Note 5) 18.28 481
corporation
RS EERER HRAR (P& 5)
Joy Business Investments Limited ~ Beneficial owner 29,400,000 (L) H Shares (Note 5) 18.28 431
ERfEBEA HRAR (P& 5)
Hong Jinjing Interest in controlled 17,840,000 (L) ~ H Shares (Note 6) 11.89 292
HEER corporation
RS EERER HR (i 6)
Sky Success Venture Holdings Beneficial owner 17,840,000 (L)  H Shares (Note 6) 11.89 2.92
Limited
ERfEBEA HR (i 6)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a person’s or a corporation’s long position in the
Shares and “S” denotes a person’s or a corporation’s short position in the
Shares.

Hao Tian Investment (China) Company Limited was wholly owned by Hao
Tian Investment (Hong Kong) Limited, which was in turn wholly owned by
Long Xin Holdings Limited, which was in turn wholly owned by Hao Tian
Development Group Limited. Hao Tian Development Group Limited was
owned as to 50.26% by Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings Ltd which in
turn was beneficially wholly-owned by Ms. Li Shao Yu and 2.14% directly by
Ms. Li Shao Yu.

Hao Tian Corporation Limited was wholly owned by Yixin Investments
Limited, which was in turn wholly owned by Hao Tian Development Group
Limited. Hao Tian Development Group Limited was owned as to 50.26% by
Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings Ltd which in turn was beneficially
wholly-owned by Ms. Li Shao Yu and 2.14% directly by Ms. Li Shao Yu.

Of the 42,800,000 H Shares in which Mr. Chan Yuk Ming (“Mr. Chan”) was
interested or deemed to be interested in, 700,000 H Shares were held by
him personally, 12,700,000 H Shares are held by Theme Link Investments
Ltd., a company wholly-owned by Mr. Chan, and 29,400,000 H Shares were
held by Joy Business Investments Limited, a company wholly-owned by
Sunsonic Holdings Limited which is a company indirectly owned by Evisu
(PTC) Limited, the trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. Chan was a
founder (please see Note 5 below).

The abovementioned 29,400,000 H Shares were held by Joy Business
Investments Limited, a company wholly-owned by Sunsonic Holdings Limited
which was in turn wholly-owned by Evergreen International Holdings Limited
("Evergreen”), a company the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange under stock code 238. Evergreen was owned as to 51% by
Pacific Success Holdings Limited, a company wholly-owned by Evisu (PTC)
Limited which was the trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. Chan was
a founder.

Mr. Hong Jinjing holds 42.00% equity interest in registered capital of Sky
Success Venture Holdings Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Hong Jinjing is deemed
to be interested in the 17,840,000 Shares held by Sky Success Venture
Holdings Limited by virtue of SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for those disclosed in the paragraphs headed and “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in Shares and
underlying Shares” in this Directors’ report in this annual report, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Hao Tian Investment (China) Company Limited (£ X% & (FFE)ER
‘A \]), the Controlling Shareholder entered into four loan agreements
with the Company to provide interest-free unsecured working capital
loan total RMB20 million to the Company for general working capital
purposes and to support the daily operation and expansion plan. As
at 31 December 2019, the outstanding amount of loan payable to the
Controlling Shareholder was fully settled (2018: RMB14 million).

As at 31 December 2019, amount due to Hao Tian Management
(Hong Kong) Limited amounts to approximately RMB2 million (2018:
RMB3 million).

Details of the related party transactions of the Company in FY2019
and undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company or their
respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in any
business which competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During FY2019, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
RMB2 million.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Details of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee are set out in section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee together with the management have reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company in FY2019.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were audited by BDO. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
BDO as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Haiying
Executive Director

Quanzhou, PRC, 20 March 2020
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Supervisory Committee of the Company, | would like
to present to the general meeting the work report of the Supervisory
Committee for the year 2019.

In 2019, the fourth session of the Supervisory Committee of Fujian
Nuogi Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) earnestly
performed its duties in compliance with the relevant national laws and
regulations as well as the articles of association of the Company,
highlighted its supervisory function over the financial position and
senior management of the Company, and carried out its works by
abiding to the objective of safeguarding the interests of the
Shareholders.

We hereby report the work performed by the Supervisory Committee
of the Company for the year 2019 as follows:

(1) INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE ON THE LAWFUL OPERATION OF
THE COMPANY

The Supervisory Committee is of the view that the Company
had complied with the legal requirements in its management
and operation during 2019 and that the Directors and managers
of the Company had fulfilled their duties without violating any
laws, regulations and articles of association of the Company or
performed any behaviours that were detrimental to the interests
of the Company.
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(2)

(3)

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE ON THE INSPECTION OF THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

The Supervisory Committee is of the opinion that BDO
expressed its unqualified opinions that the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE ON THE AUDIT OPINION OF
ACCOUNTING FIRM

The consolidated financial statement of the Company for the
year 2019 was audited by BDO and an audit report of
unqualified opinion was issued thereon. The Supervisory
Committee had no objection to the audit opinion and the
report.

We hereby present this report for the Shareholders’
consideration.
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Fujian Nuoqi Co., Ltd. BEFTROEBRAAE
Supervisory Committee e

Quanzhou, PRC, 20 March 2020 FEEN  —E-FF=A_-—1H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of corporate governance. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the Company has complied with the code provisions under the
Code, except for the deviation from the code provision A.2.1. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company as well
as details relating to the foregoing deviation are summarised below.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive officer should be
segregated and should not be performed by the same individual.
However, since the resolution passed on an extraordinary general
meeting convened on 21 April 2017 that Mr. Ding Hui was removed
as a Director, Mr. Zhang Aiping, a then executive Director, has been
elected as the chairman of the Board. On 27 June 2017, the Board
has resolved to appoint Mr. Xu Haiying, an executive Director, as the
chairman of the Board. On the other hand, the Board has yet to
appoint the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board will
keep reviewing the current structure of the Company from time to
time and should a candidate with suitable knowledge, skill and
experience be identified, the Company will make appointment to fill
the post of the chief executive officer as appropriate and will make
further announcement in due course.
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e SR e
MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS EITRZRZNEESFA

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions ~ ANA T A L HREIFTEE10AE L HRITAES
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in  #ETESHR HMIEESTA([1ZEFR]])  (EAES
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for Directors B &EA R ABZEERNZRTTH - EARTBESFH
in their dealings in the securities of the Company. Having made HEEEHE @ FERR  R_Z—HWREE - §
specific enquiry by the Company to the Directors, they confirmed that 252 @S <7 Bl pr B & 3R T 12 -

I

they have complied with the required standard of dealings as set out
in the Model Code during FY2019.

BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS BEEg
The Board is currently constituted by six members, including two  EZH@BREHNEZKEENK  BREMZHTES - —
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three Independent  Z3FMITEER="LBIFHTEE - EEENAE

non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board is as follows: R

Executive Directors

HITES
Mr. Xu Haiying (Chairman)
Mr. Sit Hon Wing HEELE(EER)
BRSNS
Non-executive Director
FHTES
Mr. Han Huiyuan
EEREAE
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua BREGLESEH
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong TREESA
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BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Function

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the management of the
Company’s business and affairs with the objective of enhancing
shareholder value.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including the developing, reviewing and monitoring of the
Company'’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors.

Daily operations, business strategies and administration are delegated
to the executive Directors and the management with divisional heads
responsible for different aspects of the business. When the Board
delegates different aspects of its management and administrative
functions to the senior management, it has given clear directions in
relation to the scope of powers of the senior management. Although
the Board is not involved in the Company’s day-to-day operations, it
does have a formal schedule of matters reserved for its own decision,
as defined in its terms of reference, which are available on the
Company’s website.
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BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued) BEE® %)
Board meetings EEggE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 14 meetings were heldby HE-FT—AF+_A=+—HIFE EFSHE

the Board. The attendance record of each Director is set out below: TT14AREH - BREFHESENEREAINAT ¢
Name of Board members Number of attendance Number of meetings
EsapBans H R B BRNRH
Mr. Xu Haiying 14 14
FFEELE

Mr. Sit Hon Wing 12 13
BEER S

Mr. Han Huiyuan 12 14
BEREE

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan 14 14
PR 8% 44 5 A

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua 9 14
FRERE

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong 14 14
Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all Directors at least 14 TFHEFSSENRANEZAHZI 14BXREDE
days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given ZEF MEAMEZTS R R SLE TEEBH -

for other Board meetings.
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BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, every
listed issuer is required to have at least three independent
non-executive Directors, at least one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company complied with these
requirements throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, with
three independent non-executive Directors, which represented more
than one-third of the entire Board; and more than one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related
financial management expertise. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has confirmed his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors meet the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent pursuant to the requirements
of the guidelines.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The chairman is responsible for leading the Board and is also
responsible for overseeing effective functioning of the Board and
application of good corporate governance practices and procedures.
Whereas the role of chief executive officer focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated by the
Board.

As mentioned in the section headed “Code of corporate governance
practice” above, the Board has yet to appoint the chief executive
officer of the Company.
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BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Appointment, re-election and removal

A Director shall have a term of office of three years and shall be
entitled to be re-appointed when the term of office expires provided
that the term of office of independent non-executive Directors shall
not exceed six years. The Company has entered into service
agreements with each of the executive Director and non- executive
Director with a term of three years. The appointment and removal of
Directors shall be approved by shareholders at shareholders’ meeting.
The current Directors appointed by the Board shall hold office until
the next annual general meeting of the Company and be subject to
re-election at such meeting.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company
before the expiration of his term of office and the Company may by
ordinary resolution appoint another in his place.

Directors’ continuous training and development

Pursuant to the Code, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During FY2019, the Company has circulated
and the Directors have received updates on changes and development
on relevant laws and regulations for their reference.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) comprises one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, Mr. Xu Haiying
and Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, Mr. Mak Yiu Tong is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and specific
remuneration packages and conditions of employment for the
Directors and senior management and evaluating and making
recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the Board, upon
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee with reference to
the Directors’ qualifications, experience, duties, responsibilities and
performance and results of the Group.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted
on the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.

During FY2019, the Remuneration Committee had held one meeting.
The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are summarised below:

SRR

EEZE8E @
FMEEE (@)

ERENFHIHESSLSZEENER KR B

% BERKRBURASENEER  REFHEZE
SHHEBEERETE -
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FMZEEgREHESHENBERMANT

Attendance/Numbers
of meetings
HEEBRY EBRH
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (Chairman) RS (L) 7
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua FRELE 1/1
Mr. Xu Haiying Bk E 7
Nomination Committee REZEE
The Company established the Nomination Committee on 16 AAGRZ-T—=F+ A+ XBERFRIKIIE
December 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with H#ZE8& - WHIEEEBEHE -

the Code.

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) comprises one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, Mr. Xu Haiying
and Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, Mr. Mak Yiu Tong is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors. The Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually; assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; and
evaluating the effectiveness and implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy (see below).

ARRREZEBE((REZBEDH—BRTES
RMEBIIIFRTES (AIZRBRELLE  FFEBELE
RERSAA L) MK - BRREEERREZEZES
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on
the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.

During FY2019, the Nomination Committee had held one meeting.
The attendance records of the members of the Nomination
Committee are summarised below:

EEREEH)
REEES(H)

REZBSNBEEE T ERA R F) R P o

RIB-NFBEE  REZEGHTT —REGH °
REZBEXBHEEERNBAMANT

Attendance/Numbers

of meetings

HEEBERH SR

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (Chairman) TR (E/E) 71
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan BREELE S 71
Mr. Xu Haiying BB AE 71

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun
Jonathan, Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua and Mr. Mak Yiu Tong. Mr. Chan
Ming Sun Jonathan is the chairman of the audit committee of the
Company. The audit committee is primarily responsible for the review
and supervision of the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. It has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During FY2019, the Audit Committee had held 2 meetings. The
attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are
summarised below:

SRR

BEEZE®(H)
EREEE(#)

RIB-NPREE  BERZEGRTTMAGH -
ERZBERBHFEEZNBRMANT -

Attendance/Numbers
of meetings during
the Reporting Period

RBEHR
HEEBRY EBRH
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (Chairman) BREGEL A (L E) 2/2
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua TRES 2/2
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong P-Sdcabiten 2/2
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EESHESUILBE
The Company adopted a policy concerning diversity of board WZZT—=F+=-F+/xH ' ARQRREFEH—BEAR
members (“Board Diversity Policy”) on 16 December 2013. The ZEZeEZ TN BEE(EFTEXEZ TILK

Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance its operating results and quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. When determining the
composition of the Board, board diversity will be considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Ka Kit, our Company Secretary, possesses the necessary
qualification and experience and, is capable of performance of the
functions of the company secretary. During FY2019, Mr. Leung Ka Kit
has satisfied the requirements on a minimum of 15 hours dedicated
for relevant professional training as set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional and development
of the Directors and senior management of the Group, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Directors have reviewed and applied suitable accounting policies,
adopted appropriate IFRSs and International Accounting Standards
("IASs"”), made adjustments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on a going concern
basis. The Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which reflect the financial information of the Group with
reasonable accuracy.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING (Continued)

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this annual
report.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

External auditors’ responsibility is to form an independent opinion,
based on their audit, on those financial statements and to report their
opinion solely to the Company, as a body, and for no other purpose.
They do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of the auditors’ report.

The Company engaged BDO as its external auditor for the year ended
31 December 2019. The Audit Committee has been notified of the
nature and the service charges of non-audit services for the agreed
upon procedures in connection with annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and considered that these non-
audit services have no adverse effect on the independence of the
auditor. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditor. Details of the fees paid/payable to BDO during
the year are as follows:

Nature of services

SRR

Bt 5 FR 3R (40)
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BN/ ENZEESNBRFEBNT

Fee paid/payable

REHMEE Bt ENER
RMB’'000

ARETIT

Audit services ENZIRTS 247
Non-audit services IEEIZ RS -
247
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system and for
reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of controls on
financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Directors, the Company’s officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance. The system aims to eliminate, or otherwise
manage, risks of failure in achieving the Company’s objectives.

During the year, the internal audit department performed regular
financial and operational review and recommending necessary actions
to the management. The works carried out by the internal audit
department ensure the risk management and internal control
measures are in place and function properly as intended. The internal
audit department reports the internal audit plan and results to the
Audit Committee directly.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems. The management has
reported and confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

No material issues on the Group’s internal control system have been
identified and reported to the Audit Committee by the Group's
internal audit department and the Company’s external auditors during
the year which required significant rectification measures. The Board
considered that the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance are
effective and adequate.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

As disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ continuous training
and development” in this annual report, the Directors have sufficient
up-to-date knowledge of relevant laws and regulations.

The Company had engaged external professional advisers, including
legal advisers, to render professional advice as to compliance with the
statutory requirements applicable to the Group from time to time.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Group also recognises the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make appropriate investment decisions.

The members of the Board and committees of the Board and the
external auditor will be present to answer shareholders’ questions in
the annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be
distributed to all shareholders before the annual general meeting and
any special general meetings in accordance with the timeline
requirement as laid down in the Listing Rules and the articles of
association of the Company. All the resolutions proposed to be
approved at the general meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting
results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after the relevant general meetings.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any enquires.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

The shareholders, individually or collective holding not less than 10%
of the paid-up capital of the Company, may by written requisition
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting. The
Board shall within 10 days after the receipt of the written requisition
provide a written reply as to whether an extraordinary general
meeting will be convened in respect of the written requisition
received.

If the Board do not within 10 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed to convene a meeting, the requisitionists may by
written requisition request the supervisory committee of the Company
(“Supervisory Committee”) to convene an extraordinary general
meeting.

In the event that the Supervisory Committee did not provide a notice
of extraordinary general meeting within the specified timeframe, the
Supervisory Committee shall be considered to be unwilling to convene
and preside over the extraordinary general meeting. The shareholders
that, either individually or jointly, hold over 10% of shares of the
Company for a period of 90 consecutive days or more may at their
sole discretion convene and preside over the extraordinary general
meeting in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the company secretary
of the Company at the Company’s principal place of business at
Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F., Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong and may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more requisitionists.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders (Continued)

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary of the Company will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by Shareholders

To put forward proposals at an AGM or extraordinary general
meeting, the shareholders, individually or collective holding not less
than 3% of the paid-up capital of the Company, should submit a
written notice of those proposals 10 days before the holding of such
meeting to the company secretary of the Company at the Company’s
principal place of business at Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F., Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The contents of the
proposals to be raised shall be within the scope of duties of the
general meetings. It shall have a clear topic and specific matters to be
resolved on, and shall be in compliance with relevant requirements of
the laws, administrative regulations and the articles of association of
the Company.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns with
contact information of the requisitionists to the Board in writing
through the company secretary of the Company by mail to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Rooms 2501-
2509, 25/F., Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FUJIAN NUOQI Co., LTD.
(A joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability).

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujian
Nuogqi Co., Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiary (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 53 to 135, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Assessment of going concern assumption
As at 31 December 2019, the Group sustained a recurring loss of

approximately RMB30,005,000 (2018:
RMB19,496,000) for the year then ended.

approximately

Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared by management on a going concern basis as, in
the opinion of the directors, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to sustain its operations and continue to operate as a going
concern for the foreseeable future.

The directors of the Company evaluated the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern based upon an assessment of the
Group’s cash position, a free cash flow forecast and its recourse to
various financing facilities.

The preparation of a free cash flow forecast requires the exercise of
significant management judgment in assessing the relevant
businesses, particularly in relation to both qualitative and quantitative
factors about the sustainability of the businesses, the business plans
of the Group and the macroeconomic environment.

We identified management’s use of the going concern assumption in
preparing the consolidated financial statements as a key audit matter
because the factors considered by the directors of the Company in
their evaluation on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern
are complex and contain certain judgmental assumptions which may
be inherently uncertain and could be subject to management bias.

Refer to critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation
uncertainty in Note 5 and basis of measurement and going concern
assumption in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Assessment of going concern assumption (Continued)
Our response:

Our procedure in relation to assess appropriateness of management’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis included the following:

— evaluating management’s future plans for the businesses of the
Group and making inquiries of management the availability to
have sufficient working capital to sustain its operations and
continue to operate for a period of at least 12 months from the
end of the reporting period;

— comparing data in management’s free cash flow forecast with
the relevant data, including forecast revenue, forecast operating
expenses and forecast capital expenditure, in the financial
budget and the businesses plan which was prepared by
management; and

—  performing sensitivity analyses of the key assumptions adopted
in the free cash flow forecast and assessing the impact of the
changes in the key assumptions on the conclusions reached and
whether there were any indictors of management bias.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
(Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Annual Report 2019 == — AL FF 7R

REMRBR RS M BBRREAZENEE

BB ERYERGESVBHRRRETFEAR

HEF s M E RN E A RBARG S B&E
Iﬁé‘ﬁ BREMEENZEERE - HMIER BT
(ERER) RERMNER - BRI ZINRI|RERIE
H B - HATERAREN AR AEMREMA
TH EgREEREE -

EEREDISKTOZE  BTRREREEET
ERETHERZ R ERFENE —EARHERRML -
SERRPRAL AT A HRFF S SE ARSI 2 - IR A B TR M E
BRI ERRRA T ERE R M RRNELE
B & AT BV EDRTE » BB e S SRR AT

WRABERX -

RIRBEABBRTEAETEZEREY  RMERE

EHE - REFBERREREE - RO

o BRI RFHEARRREFH R MG TR M ISR
REEERBRBANER - Ret RRPITER
BFARSLERR UERBSERREEESE
ZRE  ERERMERMNER - X FFERI 5

BREBR - RE - FBER  EREL - 0F
BRARREE Y £ FIth ReEFHIRERTFME
@Zéﬁﬁ BRI B R R R SRR T G B E K

uiﬁ%kmﬂ 7%!1"

. T AR B E AR AR Y A Bl ES HEEMNE
ZERF BRI IEY E\WIW‘BW? |k
MBERER -

. FHMEEEARA S BURAE
FHERT M AEREERN A R

EMARELE



Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. @iz a R B R A A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

T8 S A% B A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

T8 S A% B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun
Practising Certificate No. P05804

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
it Fr 18 2 S At 2 i W 2 R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-AhF —F-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=S ARBT R ARBTT
Revenue WA 6 8 2,177
Cost of sales SHE RN (51) (2,237)
Gross loss £i8 (43) (60)
Other gains and losses, net H AU A K 158 7 (15,471) 1,697
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (248) (1,258)
Administrative and other expenses TR EMES (13,258) (17,490)
Expected credit loss on financial assets CREECTEREEER (767) (931)
Loss from operations KEEE (29,787) (18,042)
Impairment losses on various assets ZIBEEREERE (218) (45)
Finance costs B T R AN 8 - (1,409)
Loss before tax BREL AT B 1B 9 (30,005) (19,496)
Income tax Fris#i 11 - =
Loss and total comprehensive income A THEE ABLERERE
for the year attributable to REEWKHEE
the owners of the Company (30,005) (19,496)
Loss per share BREE 13
Basic (RMB per share) AR (BRARE) (0.05) (0.03)
Diluted (RMB per share) BE(BRARE) (0.05) (0.03)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

i IR DL A%

At 31 December 2019 R=Z—NE+=-A=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E ARBT R ARBTT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR MRE 14 - 54,077
Prepaid land lease payments T T A EFRIE 15 - 9,615
- 63,692
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 - 50
Trade receivables FEWE P FRIA 17 - -
Other receivables and prepayments H M pE R IE R TB N BB 18 2,069 1,179
Prepaid land lease payments TR T A EFKIE 15 = 236
Bank and cash balances RIT MR ER 19 23,034 488
25,103 1,953
Current liabilities I A=k
Trade payables FERTE 5518 20 641 642
Other payables and accruals HAibERFIERERE R 21 11,126 6,528
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary RIS EPNGIE 22 1,784 2,611
Amount due to an intermediate FES M IER A B RIR
holding company 22 - 323
Loan from a shareholder KE—BBREZER 23 = 13,984
13,551 24,088
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE (BE)FHE 11,552 (22,135)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 11,552 41,557
NET ASSETS BEZEHE 11,552 41,557
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

i IR DL A&

At 31 December 2019 R=Z—NE+-_A=+—8

2019 2018
—E-AhF —F-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

it ARET T ARETT

Capital and reserves EARR#EE

Share capital %N 24 122,159 122,159
Reserves EE 25 (110,607) (80,602)
TOTAL EQUITY S 11,552 41,557

The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 135 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20
March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Xu Haiying
Director

EF

£33 1AL BANBRECR B4
A=+ EREESIERERTIE  LEUTA
TREEFRES

Sit Hon Wing
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Aok T W i 5 B A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

Statutory
Share Share surplus  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
e RIVEE EEERREE ZitBR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT ARBT ARBTTL ARBTT  ARETT

At 1 January 2018 R=ZF—-\F—H—H 122,159 320,811 22,940 (404,857) 61,053
Total comprehensive income FREZENELESE
for the year - - - (19,496) (19,496)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\&E+_H
=8 122,159 320,811 22,940 (424,353) 41,557

Initial application of IFRS 16 EpNEE S
WERBFE 1655 = - - T -

Restated at 1 January 2019 R=-Z-h&E-A—-HEJY 122,159 320,811 22,940 (424,353) 41,557
Total comprehensive income  FRZ2EWNHLLE
for the year - - - (30,005) (30,005)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-h&+=A
=1+-H 122,159 320,811 22,940 (454,358) 11,552
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A Bl i B

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF  —FN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

Cash flows from operating activities RETHRESRE
Loss before tax BR 7% Bl &5 18 (30,005) (19,496)
Adjustments for: MUATEIERE
Finance costs IR IDWN = 1,409
Depreciation e 1,850 4,010
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments Fa -+ 1o FH & R E = 236
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 15 FAfE B 8 78 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  RENEBARERRZE
equipment and right-of-use assets BEZEE 13,932 437
Interest income FLEMA (24) (195)
Expected credit loss on financial assets TRMEERBEEEE 767 931
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & B B A Bl 2 e - =*)
Impairment losses on property, M - WE RS EREREE
plant and equipment 218 -
Written-down of inventories WoRFE = 45
Reversal of impairment losses on trade and JEIE 5708 M E b B W FRIA
other receivables REBERED - (98)
Operating cash flows before working BEECEHINNKERERE
capital changes (13,184) (12,721)
Change in inventories FEE 50 2,163
Change in trade receivables FEWE 5K IBEE) = 166
Change in other receivables and prepayments o {th FE U K18 f2 TB < 7018 & (1,657) 468
Change in trade payables BB ZFIRE (1) 21)
Change in other payables and accruals HitE N RIE N EGTERED) 4,598 4,789
Cash used in operations KREFMAERS (10,194) (5,156)
Interest paid BAFE = (1,409)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHAREEH (10,194) (6,565)
& Less than RMB1,000 3 DR ARH1,0007T

Annual Report 2019 == — hFF 7R 57



Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. ® f@E#a RHBRA A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A Bl i &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF  —F\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFT
Cash flows from investing activities BRETEEERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEYE - WEKEE = )
Proceed from disposals of property, plant and HEYE - BE MR R E AR
equipment and right-of-use assets BEMSHCA 47,850 =
Interest received B2 UHE 24 195
Net cash generated from investing activities R&EEFEREFE 47,874 193
Cash flows from financing activities RMETBESRE
Repayment of borrowings EEEBN - (80,000)
(Repayment to)/advance from a fellow subsidiary (ra[E RZMBRAGIEER), K E R ZH B
NEZ R (827) 2,295
(Repayment to)/advance from an intermediate (AR MER A RIER), KB RN LA
holding company NRZBK (323) 323
Repayment to a shareholder EEES N (13,984) (6,666)
Loan from a shareholder KE—BREZER - 650
Net cash used in financing activities RMETEARSTEHE (15,134) (83,398)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERREESEYE M
cash equivalents OR2) #88 22,546 (89,770)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#)IR & KRG HEY 488 90,258
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXRRENREEEY 23,034 488
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok S 25 A A P

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") on 14 October 2004 as a domestic company
with limited liability under the name of Quanzhou City Nuogi
Fashion Chain Sales Co., Ltd. GRMNT#A A RFIEHEEERRA
Al). On 22 January 2008, the Company was renamed Fujian
Nuogi Co., Ltd. (f@&sE @ AR A F]) and transformed into
a joint stock company with limited liability. The Company’s
registered office is located at Room 2602, Block 5, Jialong
Shangdu, Jitai Road, Economic and Technical Development
Zone, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, the PRC.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is
Hao Tian Investment (China) Company Limited and Asia Link
Capital Investment Holdings Limited, which are incorporated in
the PRC and the British Virgin Islands, respectively.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding
and retailing of men’s and women'’s casual apparels. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

The Company’s ordinary shares (the “H Shares”) that are
approved for listing and trading on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 9 January 2014 and have been suspended for
trading since 23 July 2014. As at 5 September 2016, the
Company became a subsidiary of Hao Tian Development Group
Limited, whose shares were listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 474).

—REH

AARRZEENF+A+HAURMNTHES
REREHEERRARNBEEFEARILM
(TR A FMRL AR BRAR c RZF
ENF—AZ+=-R ARAXBEBEED
B BRAR - WEAARGAERAR - AA
A6 5 I 9% =B AR o 7 R BAAE AR SR A R Al
R EREREME S 5RIE 2602 F -

RARZ B RREERARR/D MR E KR
REBRLZHSHMAXINHZREE (FE) A
R 2 &) J2 Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings
Limited °

ARFNELEH BRAERE B RE LK
MIRMTE %7 - AEENTEEBUARE
POB R E AR -

RRAREEBHAR BB AR ([BA])
HELTREENEBR(IHRDAR=_Z—MKN
F-ANABRBXMEMERAE-S—NFLA
—t=ZHREEFEEE - RZT—R"FENAER
H ARAIKARREREBEERAA (AR
DR AT LT - IROASE : 474) 2B AR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok B 5 R T i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #z =%

2.

Annual Report 2019 —F

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable IFRSs, which collective term
IASs and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial

includes all applicable individual IFRSs,

statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 4.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note
3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in the financial statements.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis.

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss of
approximately RMB30,005,000 (2018: approximately
RMB19,496,000) and at the end of reporting period, the
Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB11,552,000 (2018: net current liabilities of
approximately RMB22,135,000).
circumstance, the Directors have given careful

In view of this

consideration to the performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue
as a going concern.

—NFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok S 25 A A P

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Continued)

Based on the Group’s 2020 business plan and cash flow
forecast, the Directors believe the Group will generate
sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due in the next twelve months. In preparing the
cash flow forecast, the Directors also consider the Group'’s
intermediate holding company, Hao Tian Development
Group Limited will continue to support the Group to the
extent necessary.

In view of the above, the Directors consider that the
Group will generate sufficient financial resources for its
working capital and capital expenditure requirements and
that it will be able to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

2. REBEE®)

(b)

SFEEERFEEERR(E)
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ERAMBERBNEZEESRER
X - BAREES AR E I AE
FIMEEN - At ERFRELEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok B 5 R T i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Suspension of trading in shares of the
Company

The trading of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended due to the unauthorised
acts discovered of Mr. Ding Hui, the former Chairman, the
former chief executive officer and executive director of the
Company. Reference is made to the Company’s
announcement dated 23 July 2014.

Reference to the Company’s announcement date 4
December 2017, the Company and Zhong Hong Holdings
Group Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into the sale and
purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital in Zhong Hong International
Limited, (the “Target Company”) which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Vendor with consideration of
HK$1,053,024,128 on 6 November 2017. The
consideration shall be paid by the Company by allotting
and issuing to Vendor 1,541,878,659 new H shares (the
" Acquisition”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it P B 255 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. REEESE)

(d) Suspension of trading in shares of the d) EARROEEEEE)

Company (Continued)

The Target Company and its subsidiaries (the “Target
Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of
construction services, mainly as a general contractor for
residential construction projects, commercial and public
works construction projects, and industrial and other
construction projects in the PRC.

The Acquisition constitutes a reverse takeover for the
Company under Rule 14.06(6)(a) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Company will be treated as if it were a
new listing applicant. The Acquisition is therefore also
subject to the approval by the Listing Committee of a new
listing application to be made by the Company. The
Company filed the new listing application with the Stock
Exchange on 26 March 2018 and 26 July 2019.

Reference to the Company’s announcement dated 4
March 2020, the Company received a resignation letter
from the sponsor on 27 February 2020. The previous
listing application was submitted on 26 July 2019. The
notice of the lapse of the listing application was issued by
the Stock Exchange on 29 January 2020. Based on the
Company’s understanding, the Stock Exchange has
suspended the vetting on the listing application. The Stock
Exchange will resume vetting once the newly appointed
sponsor submits a new listing application. The Company
will continue to liaise with the professional parties and
prepare responses to the comments from the Stock
Exchange and the Securities and Futures Commission on
28 August 2019, 21 October 2019 and 6 January 2020 in
relation to the Application Proof, which will be submitted
together with the new listing application after the
appointment of a new sponsor.

BEARRAEMBAR(EEEE]DE
EEB/ETEMEETELAR  BE
RMAKTEEEBEEUARIERAME
LERRHEERB(ZBERBERE
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Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. ® f@E#a RHBRA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 1 T 5 R B
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #z =%

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1
January 2019

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company:

IFRS 16 Leases

—NET=A=+—HLEFE

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to IFRS9  Prepayment Features and Negative
Compensation

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to IAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures
Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23
included in Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases have been
summarised in below. The other new or amended IFRSs
that are effective from 1 January 2019 did not have any
significant impact on the Group's accounting policies.
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Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. @iz a R B R A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok S 25 A A P

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (Continued)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of IFRS 16

IFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting
treatment for lease accounting, primarily for
accounting for lessees. It replaces IAS 17 Leases
("IAS 17"), IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating
Leases-Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. From a lessee’s perspective, almost all
leases are recognised in the statement of financial
position as a right-of-use assets and a lease
liabilities, with the narrow exception to this principle
for leases which the underlying assets are of low-
value or are determined as short-term leases. From a
lessor’s perspective, the accounting treatment is
substantially unchanged from IAS 17. For details of
IFRS 16 regarding its new definition of a lease, its
impact on the Group’s accounting policies and the
transition method adopted by the Group as allowed
under IFRS 16, please refer to section (ii) to (iv) of
this note.

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the cumulative
effect approach and recognised all the cumulative
effect of initially applying IFRS 16 as an adjustment
to the opening balance of accumulated losses at the
date of initial application. The comparative
information presented in 2018 has not been
restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17
and related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in IFRS 16.
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Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. ® f@E#a RHBRA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao 3 U 25 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #z =%

—NET=A=+—HLEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1

January 2019 (Continued)

FE AT RS RTBIRR B 3 5 2 Al

RANER] R ER T KR EE
Bl —Z—2-hE-A-—BBEX

(#)
(i) Impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 (Continued) (i) BFRAEBHBEHREERFEICHZ
FE(E)
As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised —h&—A—H8 £x5£E3
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at BEABEBHBREERE
amounts equal to the related lease liabilities by 16.C8(b)(i) SR B E MEREIEE R
applying IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference BREREEE  ©HEMAERIER
at the date of initial application is recognised in the HEBRE - NERERBHZEM
opening accumulated losses and comparative ZRPNHV R EE®ER - MR
information has not been restated. BRI EmED
The following tables summarised the impact of NERELMUEE T B R B R R AR
transition to IFRS 16 on statement of financial FI6RHBE_ZT—N\F+=A
position as of 31 December 2018 to that of 1 =+—HEZZT—hF—A— EIZ
January 2019 as follows (increase/(decrease)): Bk R 2 & (5, CRd)
W
RMB
Statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 R=Z—hF— A — A2 BB RE ARETT
Right-of-use assets presented in property, RO - BEMREZSZ
plant and equipment EREEE 736,525
Right-of-use assets presented in RIEN T HAERIEZ5 2
prepaid land lease payments HREEE 9,851,471
Lease liabilities (non-current) HE (FERED) 460,328
Lease liabilities (current) HEAGBORY) 276,197

Accumulated losses
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Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. @iz a R B R A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #z =% —

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (%)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1 (a)

January 2019 (Continued)

(i) Impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 (Continued)

The following reconciliation explains how the
operating lease commitments disclosed applying IAS
17 at the end of 31 December 2018 could be
reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date of initial
application recognised in the statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2019:

ok S 25 A A P

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE

FE R AT RARAERT B RR B F 3 5 E A

RANER] R ER T KR EE
Bl —Z—2-hE-A-BBEX
()

() HEAEBEHMBEHREERE165 2
o (E)

INTHERBER-_Z—\F+=A
=+ — BAREE AR g5 4R
BN HRBE 2 EEEEAELDM
HR_ZE-NF—-A—B 2Bk
ARERAREBRERAHZHES
BEHEITHER

Reconciliation of operating lease commitment RMB
to lease liabilities KEHEAEREBEAB CHEE AREETT
Operating lease commitment at RZZE-N\F+A=+—HZ

31 December 2018 féé%ﬁ i&ﬁ* 800,000
Discounted using the incremental borrowing FRAR-_ZE—N&F—A—H82

rate at 1 January 2019 EEEEMNRLIR (63,475)
Total lease liabilities as of 1 January 2019 RZZE-—hE—HA—AZ

HEaERRE 736,525

The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised
in the statement of financial position as at 1 January
20195 4.75%.

R-ZE—NAF—A—Bz2PHRR
rERzHEBERAZNETFY
EHAEEEEFNEREL475% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok B 5 R T i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (Continued)

(ii)

The new definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract, or
part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an
asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. A contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time when the customer, throughout the
period of use, has both: (a) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and (b) the right to direct the
use of the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, unless the lessee apply
the practical expedient which allows the lessee to
elect, by class of underlying asset, not to separate
non-lease components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. @iz a R B R A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it P B 255 A P

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FERHTRLIEET BRI & REZER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (%)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1 (a) BRMFETRIETEHABRTBREE
January 2019 (Continued) B ——ZFB-hFE-—HA—HEEX
(#&)
(iiij) Accounting as a lessee (i) EBRHEAZETEE

Under IAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease as an
operating lease or a finance lease based on the
extent to which risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor or the
lessee. If a lease is determined as an operating lease,
the lessee would recognise the lease payments
under the operating lease as an expense over the
lease term. The asset under the lease would not be
recognised in the statement of financial position of
the lessee.

Under IFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they are
operating leases or finance leases) are required to
be capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but IFRS
16 provides accounting policy choices for an entity
to choose not to capitalise leases which are short-
term leases. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with
those leases have been expensed on straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the commencement date of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao 3 U 25 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

FE AT RS RTBIRR B 3 5 2 Al

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (Continued)

(iiij) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (ii)
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments shall be discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group shall use the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok S 25 A A P

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (Continued)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-
substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao 3 U 25 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1
January 2019 (Continued)

(iv) Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied IFRS 16
using the cumulative effect approach and
recognised all the cumulative effect of initially
applying IFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening
balance of accumulated losses at the date of initial
application (1 January 2019). The comparative
information presented in 2018 has not been
restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17
and related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in IFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at the
date of 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified as operating leases applying IAS 17 and
measured those lease liabilities at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 January
2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FERHTRLIEET BRI & REZER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (%)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1 (a) BRMFETRIETEHABRTBREE

January 2019 (Continued)

IFRIC 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of IAS 12,
Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.
Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall
also assume the tax authority will examine amounts that it
has a right to examine and have full knowledge of all
related information when making those examinations. If
the entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then
the uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected
using either the “most likely amount” or the “expected
value” approach, whichever better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty.

Amendments to IAS 19 — Plan amendments,
curtailment or settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment
or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company should
use updated actuarial assumptions to determine its
current service cost and net interest for the period.
Additionally, the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded
when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the
plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive
income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FERHFT RIS BRI &R EZER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (%)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1 (a) BRMFETRIETEHABRTBREE

January 2019 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met —
instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to IAS 28 — Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that IFRS 9 applies to long-term
interests (“LTI") in associates or joint ventures which form
part of the net investment in the associates or joint
ventures and stipulates that IFRS 9 is applied to these LTI
before the impairment losses guidance within IAS 28.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to IFRS 3 which clarifies that when a joint
operator of a business obtains control over a joint
operation, this is a business combination achieved in
stages and the previously held equity interest should
therefore be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FERHTRLIEET BRI & REZER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (%)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective 1 (a) BRMFE RIETERGKEREE

January 2019 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to IFRS 11 which clarify that when a party
that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a
joint operation which is a business and subsequently
obtains joint control of the joint operation, the previously
held equity interest should not be remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to IFRS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise
the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where
the entity originally recognised the transactions that
generated the distributable profits. This is the case
irrespective of whether different tax rates apply to
distributed and undistributed profits.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to IFRS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing
remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the
funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating
the capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised IFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a business'
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of material'

and IAS 8
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to IFRS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

\ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments of the amendments continue to be permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

Annual Report 2019 == — AL FF 7R

FE AT RS RTBIRR B 3 5 2 Al

(%)

(b)

EREMENRERZHTLERT
I P Bt 75 3 o 2E A

BEAREEPBRR IR 2 AT H
A1/ e TR B B RS £ R B AR
WAL - BAREEL EIRFRA - K
SEBAASZRNBBIETERE U E
RABRIER] -

GilSap il ¥R
EXid )

BB @A RIEE 157 BAZER'
REB e EE]

EX il H)

il sl i
F95 « HE e
EHIE 395 R
Gl ]

F1H 2B

il syl RIEaH?
EAVE

GilSap il REEAEBENAK
F10RREREH RELEMZEENE
RAIE 285 2 (3] D3

ERHBREENE 1S BEIBEANSAIENS
b+

W
B
i

HE

' MN-B-_ZE-F-ARZRABZFE
BRI AR

2 RECB-—F—-A—- AR 2R ZFE
HR AR

? FZEEIRIIR_F-N\F—HA—Bax2
&R HREAEN - BRALEMAMRER
1%/ Mks - BERFIRATERBMIE

¢ RECB-—F-A- AR 2RI ZFE
AR AR



Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. @iz a R B R A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it P B 255 A P
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FERHTRLIEET BRI & REZER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (%)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but (b) TEMEMRERZIETLET

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 — Definition of a business

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs,
together with providing extensive guidance on what is meant
by a “substantive process”. Additionally, the amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes and
continuing to produce outputs, whilst narrowing the
definition of “outputs” and a “business” to focus on returns
from selling goods and services to customers, rather than on
cost reductions. An optional concentration test has also been
added that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 — Definition of
material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation of
“material”, aligning the definition across all IFRS Standards
and the Conceptual Framework, and incorporating

supporting requirements in IAS 1 into the definition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 — Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the
uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform. In
addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FERHFT RIS BRI &R EZER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (%)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but (b) TEMEMRERZIET BT

are not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 as a single principle-based
standard for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of insurance contracts in the financial
statements of the issuers of those contracts.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes to
the Group's accounting policies and financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 1 — Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

The amendments modify one of the criteria in IAS 1 that if
an entity does not have ‘the right at the end of the
reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period’ then it
must be classified as current.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary
("the Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiary or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by IFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #z =%

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Subsidiary

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee without holding the majority of the voting
rights. In determining whether de-facto control exists the
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances,
including:

o The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

o Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting rights;

° Other contractual arrangements; and
o Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiary are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiary are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
lease terms and 25%
Furniture, fixtures and 10%-20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 12.5%
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Payments for leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases

Payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases represent up-front payments to acquire
long-term interests in lessee-occupied properties. These
payments are stated at cost and are amortised over the
period of the lease on a straight-line basis as an expense.

(A) Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-
value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) (A) Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1

January 2019) (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy
to account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by
the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The Group measures the right-to-use
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) (A) Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1

January 2019) (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at
the commencement date of the lease are considered to
be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option and
(v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii)
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a
change in future lease payments arising from change in
an index or rate, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) (B) Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31

December 2018)

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest
element is charged to profit or loss over the period of the
lease and is calculated so that it represents a constant
proportion of the lease liability. The capital element
reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term
of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases are
considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial Instruments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4., TESTBER#E)
(f) Financial Instruments (Continued) f) «@MITAE#E)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued) (i) 2HEEE)

Debt instruments (Continued) BEFLA(E)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
fair value through OCI. Debt investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest rate method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables, contract
assets, financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets using IFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non-credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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Annual Report 2019 —F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were
incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and
financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEETBER@®E)
(f) Financial Instruments (Continued) (f) «@MITAE#E)
(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued) i) =HERE(E)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (i) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial liability
contains an embedded derivative that would need
to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for the gains and losses arising from the
Group’s own credit risk which are presented in
other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4., TESTBER#E)
(f) Financial Instruments (Continued) f) «@MITAE#E)
(iii)  Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) =HEMEE)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEHK AR B A E

(iv)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEETBER@®E)
(f) Financial Instruments (Continued) (f) «@MITAE#E)
(v) Derecognition (v) AR

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

0]

()

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 4(f) (ii)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less ECL (see note 4(f) (ii)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

0]

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using an effective interest
method.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
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4,

Annual Report 2019 —F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,

revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by

reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of

that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is

recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the goods or service.

(i)

(ii)

Sales of men’s and women’s casual apparels

The Group sells goods directly to retail customers
within retail stores and wholesale customers from
the warehouse. Revenue recognised from sale of
goods to retail customers is recognised when the
product is transferred to the customers upon sale.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately
when the customers purchase the good. The
payment is usually settled in cash or using credit
cards, Wechat pay and Alipay online platform. For
wholesale, customers obtain control of the casual
apparels when the goods are delivered to and have
been accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon
when the customers accepted the casual apparels.
There is generally only one performance obligation.
Wholesale customers are required to pay in advance
before delivery of goods.

Other income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

(m)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4., TESTBER#E)

(m) FREH(&E)

(m) Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operates (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Employee benefits
(i)  Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees. The employees
of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit plan operated by the government
of the PRC. The Group are required to contribute
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit plan to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
plan is to make the specified contributions.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4., TESTBER#E)

(0) Employee benefits (Continued) (o) EERF &)

(p)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;
o prepaid land lease payments; and
o interest in a subsidiary

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another IFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that IFRS.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) (Continued)

Other than financial assets

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another IFRS, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that IFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company'’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4., TESTBER#E)

(r) Related parties (Continued) () BAEAL(E)
(b)  (Continued) (b)y (%)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (vi) ZERBXEX@FMHEAIA
a person identified in (a). PEHIE R S E ] o

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) R@OPTHEALEHER
influence over the entity or is a member of key BERAEENNBZERE(K
management personnel of the entity (or of a ZEBZERR)EEER
parent of the entity). BRKE °

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) EFEBXEFMBEE ZEAK
which it is a part, provides key management BARIMAAEERREEE
personnel services to the group or to the RAREFTEEREKER
group's parent. 1% e

Close members of the family of a person are those family AMATZERABAETERREZER

members who may be expected to influence, or be RGP EBZBANTIZZEBATE

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity ZIREKE - BIF:

and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic () BZBEATZTFEERBEBXEEH
partner; 1

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic iy mBALTZEBXRAEHEZT
partner; and Z R

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (i) ZBEATSHARBKFARBEHRZ
or domestic partner. BAo
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined with reference to the fair value less costs of
disposal. Where the fair value less costs of disposal are
less than expected or there are unfavourable events and
change in facts and circumstance which result in revision
of fair value less costs of disposal, a material impairment
loss may arise.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(c) Going concern

The directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the Group’s recurring loss of approximately
RMB30,005,000 (2018: approximately RMB19,496,000).
The directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the
financial statements using a going concern basis. Further
details are set out in notes 2(b) and 34(c). Should the
Group be unable to continue as a going concern, all of
the Group's assets and liabilities would have to be stated
at net realisable value. In particular, the non-current assets
and the non-current liabilities would have to be
reclassified as current assets and current liabilities
respectively and provision for contingent liabilities may be
required as a result.

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group's primary operating segment is the retailing of men’s
and women’s casual apparels. Since it is the only operating
segment of the Group, no further analysis thereof is presented.

Besides, the Group’s customers and non-current assets are
solely in the PRC. No further analysis on the geographical
information thereof is presented.

(i) Information about major customers

Revenue from one (2018: one) customer of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB5,000 (2018:
approximately RMB597,000), which represent 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. WERkoMEHKE)

(ii) Disaggregation of revenue (i) W=E&5
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by TREFBEMETS FTEERRKZE
primary geographical markets, major products and timing TEREFE B 9 U 2s o

of revenue recognition.

2019 2018
—B-hE —ET-N\fF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBETT

Primary geographical markets FEHETIS

The PRC aa 8 2,177
Major products TEEM

Men’s and women'’s casual apparels B R KFE AR &R 8 2,177
Timing of revenue recognition W 22 e R A

Product transferred at a point in time RIEEREEERNE R 8 2,177
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7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET HiW AR BB FE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE ARE TR ARETT
Government grants BT BA 1 = 1,286
Interest incomes F B U A 24 195
Exchange gains PE 5 Uz 214 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary L E—FRE AR - =
Reversal of impairment losses on O fEWE 5 S IEREBE
trade receivables - 98
Donation B3 (2,000) —
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - HE MEEU R 2
plant and equipment and FREEENEER
right-of-use assets (13,932) -
Compensation income BB A 223 -
Others Hib - 118
(15,471) 1,697
* Less than RMB1,000 g DI ARE1,0007T
1. Government grants mainly comprised of subsidy related 1.

I29SEEEESE Sk RS S TE vt
BROME - ZREHUMERBEOBR
SFIRARD ©

to the Group’s incentive of business development. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching to
these grants.

PN In April 2019, the Group entered into the Sale and 2.
Purchase Agreements with the purchaser for the disposal

RZT—NFMA  AEMBEE L
B E s - AR E A K% 50,000,000
T EWE - BRE R (FIE14) RE
g E (MizE15) °

of property, plant and equipment (Note 14) and right-of-
use assets (Note 15) for an aggregate consideration of
RMB50,000,000.
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FINANCE COSTS 8. MM
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Interests on other borrowings H A & 50 F 2 = 1,409
LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. MKRBiATEE
Loss before tax is arrived at after charging: BRB RIS B TS HIBR T 5135 IR R 25
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZFE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEEREE 50 2,152
Write-down of inventories Wom T E = 45
Costs of inventories recognised as expenses &R /&5 X 17 & LA 50 2,197
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN < 247 245
Depreciation e 1,850 4,010
Minimum lease payment HIEBERK - 392
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments & f<t + 3 6 & ZUIE 24 54 = 236
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 5 RS E S 78 =
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIXAN(BRESIE) :
remuneration):
Salaries, bonus and allowances E e NP A= =1 2,311 2,887
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  3RRiE T 5+ 214 5% 39 78
2,350 2,965
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - HE MBI
equipment and right-of-use assets FREEENETE 13,932 437
Impairment losses on property, VI - BB REEREEE
plant and equipment 218 =
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

10. EERTEBRESHFMALT ZME

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of each Director were as follows: ZEEMeMT -
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme
Fee allowances contributions Total
RIKER
BE FHeRER FTEIftRR @t
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
2019 —ZE-NEF AREBTRE AR¥BTR AR¥ETR AR®Tx
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Xu Haiying BNl e = = = =
Mr. Sit Hon Wing EEER = = - -
Non-Executive Director HHITEE
Mr. Han Huiyuan BERLE - - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors Y&/ FE#77E %
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR&4 44 50 A4 108 - - 108
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua RIS E 108 - - 108
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong BRESRE 108 - - 108
Total for 2019 —T-NEFEE 324 = = 324
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 10. EERTEBRSHFMA L ZME &)
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme
Fee allowances  contributions Total
RIKRER
we  FekEE SHEIER et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
2018 —E-N\F ARBTT AREFTT ARETT ARETRT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Xu Haiying BB L = - - -
Mr. Sit Hon Wing EOELS A = = - -
Non-Executive Director FEHITEE
Mr. Han Huiyuan BERLE & - - -
Independent Non- BUIFHITEE
Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PREALE S A 105 - - 105
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua FRELLE 105 - - 105
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong BIRRSEE 105 - - 105
Total for 2018 —E— ) \FHE 315 = B 315
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EENTEBREFMA L ZME @)

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10.

FRAAKEZRAERESFMALERETR(Z
E-\F: —R)EF EeRBUREXE
F2nfNe AR (ZE-N\F: mB)ALZ

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included nil (2018: one) director whose emoluments is reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the five

(2018: four) individuals are set out below: &5 T -

2019 2018
—E-hE —FE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARET T
Basic salaries and allowances HAFH & MR, 1,146 913
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREFIET B3R 17 17
1,163 930

The emoluments fell within the following band: MR AT EE :

Number of individuals
AE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NEF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ Z 1,000,000 7T 5 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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INCOME TAX 11. B8
No provision for PRC enterprise income tax is required since the BHE—

Group has no assessable profit for the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the Company and its subsidiary is 25%.

The reconciliation between the income tax and the loss before

tax is as follows:

BILEE

—NER-_ZE-N\F+-A=+—H

JJ:EBZ " AR B FE RS A

REIRRASHREL R

EEFEEGED -
TR A25% o

PSR EERBR T Al B 18 2 IR T

BB

RIEFPESEMSHE((DEMRBEIED ki
ARAIREKB AR

2019 2018
S — N\
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Loss before tax FRELRTES 18 (30,005) (19,496)
Tax at the PRC statutory rate of 25% HHRBETHE 25% T E 2 8 (7,501) (4,874)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T HMAZ M E 3,682 2,377
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBRA 2 B2 (107) (38)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERHIEEEZ R E 3,926 2,535

Income tax for the year

FAEHR
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12.

13.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately RMB30,005,000
(2018: approximately RMB19,496,000) and the weighted
average number of 610,794,000 (2018: 610,794,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share
No diluted loss per share are presented as the Company did not

have any dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.
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13.

9=

EETEEMBE_E-NF+_A=1—H
IFFEIRBEMRE(ZE—N\F : §) -

BREE

BREXREE

KARHEE AEREREREERTIBEARQR
A AR FREIEL AR 30,005,0007T(=
T—NF: HARY19,496,00070) READ

BT E R 2 D9 20610,794,000 % (= Z
—)\%F : 610,794,000 i%) 5t & -

BREEER
HRBE-F-AFR-F-/\E+=A

=t —HIEFE  ARRAEEE EAHEE
EEER SR SRETER -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - - BERRXRE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor Leasehold

Buildings equipment vehicles  improvement Total
HRE HER

B WAERME AE HEEE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Cost A

At 1 January 2018 R=Z-\&—H—H 74,286 413 1,166 1,472 77,337
Additions NE - - - 2 2
Disposals/write off HE /s - (68) - (540) (608)

At 31 December 2018 and RZE—-N\E+_A

1 January 2019 =+-HE
—2-hE-A-A 74,286 345 1,166 934 76,731
Disposals/ write off HE /i (74,286) (345) (1,166) (934) (76,731)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=+—H - - = = =

Accumulated depreciation ~ RitiTE

At 1 January 2018 R=ZF-\5-A—-H 17,644 79 869 23 18,815
Charge for the year FERX 3,531 81 119 279 4,010
Disposalsiwrite off HE /s - (39) - (132) (171)

At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\E+=A

1 January 2019 =+-BkK

“Z-HN&—-A-H 21,175 121 988 370 22,654
Charge for the year FERX 1,764 46 4 36 1,850
Disposals/write off HE /i (22,939) (167) (992) (406) (24,504)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=A

=1-H = = = - -
Net book value FEFE
At 31 December 2019 RZZB-h&F+=R

== = = = - -
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-A

=g 53,111 224 178 564 54,077
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. FA{T T EERE

Prepaid land Right-of-use
lease payment assets Total
FEAT L i
HEXKE EREEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTFT ARETT ARETT
Cost D%
At 1 January 2018 and RZZ-—NF—A—AK
31 December 2018 2N
+=-A=+—~H 11,772 - 11,772
Initial application of IFRS 16 & )/ i F B BR B 745 3 2 £ )
FE165% (11,772) 11,772 -
Disposals He - (11,772) (11,772)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+ZA=+—H = - =
Accumulated amortisation: Z &t :
At 1 January 2018 R-—ZT—N\E—A—8 1,685 = 1,685
Charge for the year FRAX 236 - 236
At 31 December 2018 W—ZF—-—NF+=-A=+—H 1,921 - 1,921
Initial application of IFRS 16 & )/ /i FA B % B 755 3 = ZE A
F169% (1,921) 1,921 -
Charge for the year FANRE - 78 78
Disposals HE - (1,999) (1,999)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—-—NF+=ZA=+—H = = =
Net book value: BRIENEE :
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hF+-_A=+—8H - = -
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+_A=+—H 9,851 - 9,851
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16. INVENTORIES 16. BE
2019 2018
—EB-NEF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETFT
Finished goods UK — 50
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. BERE SRR
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on ARBREZFMNESRRABEERE - X
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is EFERIN MEFBRAERAMNK - EEHA
normally required. The credit period is generally one month, BREA TEFFRAERE=EA - K
extending up to three months for major customers. The Group SERHERBEBRFIRE TR HIAS
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables FERBHAERE - BT IR ARG -
in order to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed ERNARERRKESRASRAEZTHE
regularly by the Directors. In view of the fact that the Group'’s P AEBYEEREEETER - AEBEW
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified B H W E 5 IR RE A AR m e
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. TR IR EEREE ©

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances.

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt =T ARBT T AREFT

Trade receivables e E 53008 77 77
Less: Loss allowance B R 29(b) (77) (77)
The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting AN 2= @ 4R 15 T 5 4P Gi) B it & 5 B RE R RE

policy stated in Note 4(f)ii). B518 o
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18. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 18. EMEWRIER AN KIE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARETF ARET T
Prepayments TERTFRIE 2 50
Rental deposits He®e 158 188
Other receivables Hh el (i) 3,907 2,172
Less: Loss allowance i B iR 29(b) (1,998) (1,231)
2,069 1,179

(i) As at 31 December 2019, the balance mainly represented the
remaining sale consideration of RMB2,000,000 receivable from the
purchaser arising from disposal of property.

19. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 19.

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies amounted to
approximately RMB23,034,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
approximately RMB488,000) is subject to the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations.

0] RZE-NF+_A=+—H S&HRIERHE
MEMELERRETRTHERBARE
2,000,0007T

RITRA SRR

RZZE-—NF+_A=Z+—H HAR%
23,034,000 (ZZ— N\ : #) AR 488,000
TT) B R B AMNE B SR BIRR Bl s A RB K
BBINE -

20. TRADE PAYABLES 20. BEHESRE
2019 2018
—E-hE  —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT
Trade payables FERTE SRR 641 642

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on one month’s term.
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TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

20. EHESRIE#®)

UTARBEMRRERTAHNZIZENES

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: FRIE 2 BRE AT -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREETIT
Within 1 month 1@ A LAA = =
1 to 3 months 1&231@A = =
3 to 6 months 3Z=61EA = =
6 months to 1 year 6EA=E1F - -
Over 1 year HBilE1F 641 642
641 642

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21. HitENRERETRA
2019 2018
—®B-hE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETIT
Accruals fEsTE A 944 697
Other payables Hh T RIR 10,182 5,831
11,126 6,528

AMOUNT DUE TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY/
AMOUNT DUE TO INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amounts due to a fellow subsidiary and intermediate
holding company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER

The loan from a shareholder is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

22. EN—ERAKNEARKE BN

BT ER A RRE

RN —ER R B AR K — R ERA R R
BREER T ERRIREREE -

23. RE—ERRZER

KE—BBERZERREER - T EREE

%1
i

SkKIE
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24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. R
Number
of shares Amount
BRHH B X
RMB'000
AREFT
Registered: s
Ordinary shares at RMB0.20 BREMBARR0.207T
(2018: RMBO0.20) each (ZF—N\F: ARK0.207T)
=3 1)
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, R-E—N\EFE—HF—H -
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —E-N\F+-A=+—8-
—E-NF-A-BRK
—E-NAF+ZA=+—H 610,794,000 122,159
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE
Ordinary shares at RMB0.20 BREEARK0.20T
(2018: RMB0.20) each —ZE-)N\F: AR¥o0207T)
2 BB
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, R=ZE—N\E—HA—H-
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —E-N\FE+-A=+—8"
“_E-NAF-A-BR
—E-AF+-HA=+—H 610,794,000 122,159
25. RESERVES 25. f#1E
(a) The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements (a) AEEHEBEZSEREEHINGELIE
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of alEMEARERRGAEREHR
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and W25 -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
(b) Nature of the statutory reserve of the Group (b) FEBEERBZME

(i) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issuance
of the shares of the Company.
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25. RESERVES (Continued) 25. @#EE)

(b) Nature of the statutory reserve of the Group (b) AEEEERB2ZMEEE)

(Continued)

(i) Statutory surplus

Transfers from retained earnings to statutory reserve
fund were made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiary established
in the PRC and were approved by the respective
boards of directors.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make good
previous years' losses, if any, and may be converted
into paid-up capital provided that the balance of the
statutory reserve fund after such conversion is not
less than 25% of their registered capital.

The Company and its subsidiary in the PRC are
required to transfer a minimum of 10% of their net
profits, as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the registered capital. The transfer to this fund
must be made before distribution of dividends to
owners.

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Company and its subsidiary under the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC.

(ii)

JEE BB

BRERMNEBREEEHBS IR
ERT BRI AR R ARRR
EIR AL 2 (B A Bl Z B = A2 4R
AMEL AR B CEETSH]
-

FEERESTAEEGTIFER
(%) - WATERABRRA - 5l
RANEHAERE  EArRHESE
BALREFMERZ 25% °

REFEEFRAUNFERZRE
ARBRERPEZ M ERBZAR
EERBoEREAEN Z &
10% @ EERBEEHREEEME
RZ50% Rk - MREE 2 ERE
ARMHEE NRERSATEL -

ETE R (TR 2 IR) ThiR i o B
RERRERBEE AR R REM
BARIZBRBRER -
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25. RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Reserves of the Company

25. @#EE)

() ARRzMHE

Statutory
Share surplus Accumulated
premium reserve loss Total
SEER R
% 105 E & ey if ] st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT AR®TT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—NF—A—H 320,811 22,940 (404,857) (61,106)
Total comprehensive income 9 (X% M U 25 44 58
for the year - - (19,496) (19,496)
At 31 December 2018 RZZB-N\F
+=-—HA=+—H 320,811 22,940 (424,353) (80,602)
Initial application of IFRS 16 & /X & I BB 81 5 iR &5
A5 16 5% . - - -
Restated at 1 January 2019 R=—ZT— N4
—H—H &gE7| 320,811 22,940 (424,353) (80,602)
Total comprehensive income X & 5 E%E
for the year - - (30,005) (30,005)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=—HA=+—H 320,811 22,940 (454,358) (110,607)
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26. ADE]ZHBEAAMRTME

COMPANY
2019 2018
—g-nE T N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI -~ BB Mk i - 54,077
Interest in a subsidiary R—EB AT 2 _ 97
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS A EFRIE = 9,615
- 63,789
Current assets REEE
Inventories e - 50
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5kIE = -
Other receivables and prepayments H o fE R IE R TB N BB 2,069 1,179
Prepaid land lease payments TERT T E FIR = 236
Bank and cash balances RITRIRS 8 23,034 391
25,103 1,856
Current liabilities G-k
Trade payables FETE SRR 641 642
Other payables and accruals HAb R FIA R ESTE A 11,126 6.528
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e —E R ZH B R FIE 1,784 2,611
Amount due to intermediate FER —R AR M IZERR A R SRIE
holding company - 323
Loan from a shareholder KE—BBREZER = 13,984
13,551 24,088
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE (BE)FHE 11,552 (22,232)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 11,552 41,557
NET ASSETS EEZFE 11,552 41,557
Capital and reserves BERR#E
Share capital A% A 122,159 122,159
Reserves & (110,607) (80,602)
TOTAL EQUITY ERBEE 11,552 41,557
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27. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The following table shows Group’s changes in liabilities arising

THEHRERERHT

METHEEEEHEER

TEEFIAEBENREEDEL 2 BES

from financing activities during the year: (P
Amount
Amount due to
Loan due to intermediate
froma a fellow holding
Borrowings shareholder subsidiary company
RE-8 EBN-BRZ EF-F0H
B BRRZER Wi A RIFIA ZRARRE
(Note 23) (Note 22) (Note 22)
(Bt 23) (FizE22) (FtzE22)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFT ARBFT AR®T T
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-\F—H—H 80,000 20,000 316 =
Changes in cash flows Rengd (80,000) (6,016) 2,278 323
Non-cash changes EHeE
— exchange adjustment — BRI = - 17 =
At 31 December 2018 and R-ZE—N\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=t—Hk
—T-N¥—-A—H - 13,984 2,611 323
Changes in cash flows Benge® - (13,984) (815) (323)
Non-cash changes FELE
— exchange adjustment —EH AR - - (12) =
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+-—A=+—A - - 1,784 -
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

29.

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions

There were no other related party transactions and
balances except for those disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel
The emoluments of the Company’s Directors, who are

also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in note 10.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate

risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities.

Credit risk

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
that counterparties fail to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amounts of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables.

28.

29.

ok S 25 A A P

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE

BESTRS
() BELRS
R BMER MBS TREEI - B8

HAORRETT R 5 Mg o

(b) FEEBAEME
ARRES(NHERAR/AEEZTRER
EBREB) 2 ME R 10 -

R EE

AEEXBEEEEZHEYHRER  SNER
B EERR  RBESABRRNERE A
SEZERRREEFIFINEBTIHEZL
BRAZHYE  ARSKEERDEAEENS
KRBT BEER Z TNHIFE -

(a) HhEEE B

HRABLEBRRS  EEMAGBETE
DASEBER N EEE A%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 2 =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continue) 29. MBEMERE#)

(b) Credit risk (Continue) (b) EERBK#E)

The Group trade only with recognised and creditworthy
customers with no requirement for collateral. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Directors review the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable regularly
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised
for irrecoverable receivable. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

The Group applies the simplified and general approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for trade receivables.

The Group measures loss allowances for other receivables
at a portion of lifetime ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will there be based on the lifetime ECLs. As at
31 December 2019, loss allowances for all other
receivables are measured an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 = =—Z—hF+-A=+—HILFE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continue) 29. MIEEKERE#)
(b) Credit risk (Continue) (b) EERBK#E)
The following table provides information about the TREMEU-_Z—AE+_A=+—
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade BHARKEMESEERRREKE S K
receivables and other receivables as at 31 December 2019: BREMEWRIBzBREEBEZE
e
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEEE REAE EERE
(%) RMB'000 RMB'000

(%) ARETT ARBTT

Trade receivables EWE S MIE

More than 90 days past due AHIERE 90 K 100% 77 (77)

Other receivables H {th fE TR

Rental deposits Heks 100% 158 (158)

Other receivables Ho{th & YRR 47.09% 3,907 (1,840)
4,065 (1,998)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience BHEBERRBE-—FrERBEBRLER

over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect STE - hFhERARBEAN(HREKE

differences between economic conditions during the LB BRI ZER - B AT AR

period over which the historic data has been collected, 5= B 4 pE W SR IR TE HR 17 48 B 2 8 AR O

current conditions and the group’s view of economic Z B RMINATIEE -

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognised) when JE W 5 SR IE 7Y & 3 T8 B 5K B U [S] FRE Ji

there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Failure to S (RNAR IE7ERR) » M (AR B ) X8

make payments within 90 days from the invoice date and BEERERIORANFE KRR ALH

failure to engage with the Group on alternative payment WATEMATREHE - R AEAIEK

arrangement amongst other is considered indicators of no ETEHIRI BRI R o
reasonable expectation of recovery.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continue) 29. MBEMERE#)

(b) Credit risk (Continue) (b) EERKE)
RZZF—hhF—A—HA EREEE
BEERNHRRER S EERBEES
(RHFE4HQ) - R=ZZ—N\EF+=A
=+—H8 ' AR¥77,000tzEHE 5
HEBRETHEERE HEATEEE
BEZESEBERETAT :

Prior to 1 January 2019, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment (see note 4(g)(ii)). At 31 December 2018,
trade receivables of RMB77,000 was determined to be
credit impaired. The ageing analysis of trade debtors that
were not considered to be credit impaired was as follows:

2018
—T-)N\F

RMB’000
ARBTT

KRBT R (E -

Neither past due nor impaired

R 380 B 7 4 R 1L RO B MK R TR B % 2 4 1
WEHBR N E B

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of FEUE 5 TR A [ B FE U SR I8 2R (B B

trade and other receivables during the year is as follows: WRENFEFIAT :
Trade Other
receivables receivables Total
EWESFHIE HttERNKE st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREET T AREEF T AREFT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-NF—HA—H 175 300 475
Reversal of impairment loss FRNREEERD
during the year (98) - (98)
Impairment losses recognised FRERREEE
during the year - 931 931
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF
+—-A=+—8H 77 1,231 1,308
Reversal of impairment loss FAREEERE
during the year - - -
Impairment losses recognised FNERRERE
during the year - 767 767
At 31 December 2019 NR-ZE—AF
+=A=+—H 77 1,998 2,075
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continue)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The management of the Group receives rolling 12-month
cash flow projections on a monthly basis as well as
information regarding cash balances. At the end of the
financial year, these projections indicated that the Group
expected to have sufficient liquid resources to meet its
obligations under all reasonably expected circumstances.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Company’s financial liabilities, based on undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Company can
be required to pay.

29. BIBRAKREE#)

(0

REE SRR

RE B W R E BRI MIEER
BESHFL BEREKEHRSFHE
mREERARRRZRBESFER

AEEERESAKENZEAARERE
AR BEBRSEHRZER - KUK
FEAREK  ZERARRAEEEY
BERRRDERENIASERNE
A REE -

TRETHENAREA RSB EENR
TAXNEHER - HIRBARERRER
B (BEMNBAOMNER(MAZEHEX)
WE BHEATA R ENOFB M) ”A
RABEERZEFAYE -
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continue) 29. BIEKBEE#)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continue) () "BELERKE)
The maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities is AEBESBBENIEHONOT
as follows:
Total
contractual Between Between
Carrying undiscounted Less than 1and2 2and 5
amount cash flow 1year years years
BRRER

REE RERELE —FUR —EWMF  WELF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTLE ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF
+=ZB=t+-H
Trade payables ENESHE 641 641 641 = -
Other payables and accruals — Eft et 3018 2
st 2R 11,126 11,126 11,126 - -
Amount due to a fellow R —FRZM B LT
subsidiary IR 1,784 1,784 1,784 - -
13,551 13,551 13,551 - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+_H
=+—H
Trade payables [ENB 558 642 642 642 = -
Other payables and accruals Kb B IB
fEitER 6,528 6,528 6,528 - _
Amount due to a fellow R —FRZMELE
subsidiary B 2,611 2,611 2,611 - -
Amount due to intermediate  FE{T — TP NMER AT
holding company o] 323 323 323 - -
Loan from a shareholder KE—BRRZER 13,984 13,984 13,984 - -
24,088 24,088 24,088 - -
(d) Interest rate risk (d) RIZmEbz
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets ARAEETEERGFREERAE
and liabilities, the Group’s operating cash flows are WARBEzEEReREEE LBAIRN
substantially independent of changes in market interest Mg H %= 2 &
rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #z =% —

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continue)

(e) Fair values

()

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated

statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.

Categories of financial instruments

29.

BKEMER &)

(e) 2YE

NFE+ZA=+—HILFE

EEVBRARAKRMRBRASESHE
E TRAENEEERRESENA

FERE

h SmMIBEH

2019 2018
—E-hEF — N\
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Financial assets THMEE
Loans and receivables: BRI EWRIE
Trade receivables FEW B 5 FkIA =
Other receivables H th B W RRIR 2,067 1,129
Bank and cash balances RITRIBEER 23,034 488
25,101 1,617
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: HE AT RS R BE ¢
Trade payables FEfE S FRIE 641 642
Other payables and accruals HAb R Iﬁ&ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ 11,126 6,528
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e — IR R B A A 1,784 2,611
Amount due to intermediate holding FER—E R NIEAR A R IE
company = 323
Loan from a shareholder KE—BREZER = 13,984
13,551 24,088
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30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

30. EXAEEBRRRER

AEE 2 ERNEEBRDREAEEESEE
W AR HE SR - R R RN R
HEE 2N - W REZERNRBIARE

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return

BAEA -

REFAHBERERE  AEEMERAERRK
REXMZBReHE  MRRBEEER - BITH

PR sk 6 & B AR (BT o

capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.

REBZEREEREME22 R23FMEEE
Notes 22 and 23, cash and cash equivalents and equity % RERBSEEWURKTRTEE AEN
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share o BED R EERM 24 %25 2 R K&
- AEECEREEIMEFEEHER
The Group'’s risk management reviews the capital structure on a HEEERRAEHN -y BREZRE
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the management KA REEEEARB@ 2 R -

considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts disclosed in

capital and reserves as disclosed in Notes 24 and 25 respectively.

class of capital.

AEBEEREERBLL R (BRBRGAEE

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total A48
BE)ERER - BERBERRERRER

borrowings divided by total assets. Total borrowings include
loan from a shareholder and borrowings.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 30. EXEERHRRRER &)
PROCEDURES (Continued)
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were WMEMARANEERBLENT
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETFT
Loan from a shareholder RE—BREZER - 13,984
Borrowings (BN - _
Total borrowings HER = 13,984
Total assets BEE 25,103 65,645
Gearing ratio BEEAEE N/A R iE A 21.3%
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 31. H{EHEREE
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, there are certain RMEHARE - BEARRRNDEGESEi)
updates in respect of the status of suspension of trading in ZERBETEN BHEE-THBHNE
shares of the Company, and further details of which are stated S EmERMEE2 -

in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2020.

32.

BEREMBRE

ABHmRRER
B AT E

% o
%

TRE=A_THKESRS
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31 December 2019 —E— A F+-F=+—H

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of AEEBEEREATBFENC TIEEAREER
the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the basis set  BERIHE R JIBE T XM LTl £ & H L
out in the notes below:

RESULTS e

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1t-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NE ZT-)\& T+ —E-RF —ET-1F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARE®TR ARETT AR®ETT ARETT AREFR

REVENUE WA 8 2,177 39,098 4,430 21,541
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRI (B51R), /%7 (30,005) (19,496) (5,893) 406,195 (355,285)
IN COME TAX EXPENSE FiEHAX 5 - - - -
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR £ (E18),/ 575 (30,005) (19,496) (5,893) 406,195 (355,285)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: DM\T/J\:I:E‘E{E (&)
Owners of the Company iﬁaﬁ%ﬁ/\ (30,005) (19,496) (5,893) 406,195 (355,285)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

“®-h0E ZEN\F ZFtF ZFF —F-If
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRE ARETT ARETR ARBT:R

TOTAL ASSETS BERE 25,103 65,645 163,965 78,226 165,413
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEER (13,551) (24,088) (102,718) (11,086) (535,008)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE/(AfR) 58 11,552 41,557 61,247 67,140 (369,595)
Notes: BisE :

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and ~AREHE—ZT-NAF+ZA=T—HLFENGEFERRD

the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2019 are —ZE—AF+-A=+—HNGEAEERBBERAFREME
those set out on pages 54 to 55 of this annual report. EESEAMEE -
The above summary does not form a part of the audited financial statements. FBIE W B A TR WK —E D o
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